
*Any meeting or event scheduled to be held at the Commissioners’ Offices (218 West Kiowa Avenue, Fort Morgan, 
CO) will be relocated to a site with handicapped access upon request. For special assistance for the Morgan County 
Board of Commissioners meeting, please notify us at least 48 hours before the scheduled agenda item. Please call 
(970)542-3500, extension 1410, to request accommodations for any of the two locations. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Karla Powell, Administrative Services Manager 
AGENDA POSTED ON Friday, September 30, 2022 @ 4:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 
MORGAN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Assembly Room, Administration Building 
231 Ensign Street, Fort Morgan, CO 80701 

Tuesday, October 4, 2022 
 
 

To watch and/or listen to the meeting but not participate, you may do so by connecting via Zoom 
Conferencing Access Information: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039 or to listen via phone, 
please dial: 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID: 830 1292 1039 
 
To participate in the Citizen’s Comment Period you must connect via Zoom Conferencing Access 
Information: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039 If you cannot connect via Zoom, you may 
submit written public comment to morgancountybcc@co.morgan.co.us by email by 4 p.m. on 
Monday October 3, 2022.  
 
To participate in Public Hearings you may connect via Zoom Conferencing Access Information: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039 to listen via phone, please dial: 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID: 
830 1292 1039 
 
9:00 A.M. 

A.  WELCOME – CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL: 
 Commissioner Becker 
 Commissioner Westhoff 
 Commissioner Arndt 
 

B. CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD 
Citizens are invited to speak to the Commissioners on agenda or non-agenda items.  There is a 3 
minute time limit per person, unless otherwise noted by the Chairman.  Please note that no formal 
action will be taken on these items during this time due to the open meeting law provision; 
however, they may be placed on future posted agenda if action is required. 
 

C. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the Board of County 
Commissioners and will be enacted with a single vote.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items.  If discussion is deemed necessary, any Board member may ask that the item be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately: 
 
1. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of meeting minutes dated  

September 14, 2022 
2. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of meeting minutes dated  

September 20, 2022 
3. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of meeting minutes dated  

September 27, 2022 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83012921039


*Any meeting or event scheduled to be held at the Commissioners’ Offices (218 West Kiowa Avenue, Fort Morgan, 
CO) will be relocated to a site with handicapped access upon request. For special assistance for the Morgan County 
Board of Commissioners meeting, please notify us at least 48 hours before the scheduled agenda item. Please call 
(970)542-3500, extension 1410, to request accommodations for any of the two locations. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Karla Powell, Administrative Services Manager 
AGENDA POSTED ON Friday, September 30, 2022 @ 4:00 P.M. 

 
4. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of Contract 2022 CNT 098, Joseph R. 

Hewgley & Associates, Term of Contract August 23, 2022 through completion 
5. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of Contract 2022 CNT 101, Buchanan 

Construction, Term of Contract September 1, 2022 through completion 
6. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of Contract 2022 CNT 102, Geo-

Synthetic Systems LLC, Term of Contract September 28, 2022 through completion 
7. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval of Contract 2022 CNT 103, Dahl & 

Sons Construction, Term of Contract September 22, 2022 through completion 
8. Ratify Chairman Jon Becker’s signature on the License/Crossing Agreement, signed July 19, 

2022 
9. Ratify Chairman Jon Becker’s signature on the CCI Legislative Committee Commissioner 

Designation Form, signed September 28, 2022 
10. Ratify Chairman Jon Becker’s signature on the Victim Assistance Grant Application Form, 

signed September 23, 2022 
11. Ratify Chairman Jon Becker’s signature on the Veterans Affairs Monthly Report – September 

2022, signed October 3, 2022 
12. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval on Morgan County Fairgrounds Fee 

Waiver Request for the American Legion Auxiliary Trillion Trees, approved September 23, 
2022 

13. Ratify the Board of County Commissioners approval on assignment of debt collections to 
Wakefield and Associates, Client #211278, #220842.  

 
D. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
E. GENERAL BUSINESS AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

1. Consideration of Approval – Rescinding Resolution 2022 BCC 18 Due To Duplication Of 
Numbers and replacing with Resolution 2022 BCC 20 (A Resolution Updating The 
Financial Authority Of County Officials And Employees Relating To County Bank 
Accounts) 

2. Consideration of Approval – Resolution 2022 BCC 21 A Resolution Approving The 
Purchase And Sale Agreement For The Sale Of County Property To Bohmco, LLC 

3. Consideration of Approval – Resolution 2022 BCC 22 A Resolution Approving A Permit 
For An Activity Of State Interest (“1041” Permit) To Public Service Company Of Colorado 
Dba As Xcel Energy For Electric Transmission Lines And Substation In Morgan County 
(Kathryn Sellars, Morgan County Attorney & Nicole Hay, Morgan County Planning & 
Zoning Administrator) 
 

F. COUNTY OFFICIAL AND DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
1. Commissioners Calendar for week of September 30, 2022, through October 11, 2022 

        
 
 
 
 
 



*Any meeting or event scheduled to be held at the Commissioners’ Offices (218 West Kiowa Avenue, Fort Morgan, 
CO) will be relocated to a site with handicapped access upon request. For special assistance for the Morgan County 
Board of Commissioners meeting, please notify us at least 48 hours before the scheduled agenda item. Please call 
(970)542-3500, extension 1410, to request accommodations for any of the two locations. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Karla Powell, Administrative Services Manager 
AGENDA POSTED ON Friday, September 30, 2022 @ 4:00 P.M. 

      G. PUBLIC HEARING  
 

1. Applicant: Gary and Deb Vondy  
 Landowner: Dola Smith  
 Legal Description: Parcel in the E½SE¼ of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 56 West of the 
 6th P.M., Morgan County, Colorado. Also known as 15089 County Road 26 and 15115 County 
 Road 26, Brush, Colorado 80723.  
 Request: Minor Subdivision to plat approximately 15.09 acres into two lots.  
 

Open for Public Comment 
Close for Public Comment 
Discussion and Decision 

 
2. Applicant: Tim Naylor, Hannah Dutrow/AGPROfessionals  

 Landowner: Kraft Family Dairies, LLC  
 Legal Description: A parcel located in the S½ and the E½NE¼ of Section 27, Township 3 North, 
 Range 57 West of the 6th PM, Morgan County, Colorado aka 13500 Co Rd 21, Fort Morgan, 
 Colorado 80701 Request: Amended Use by Special Review Permit to expand the permitted 
 Quail Ridge Dairy confinement operations from 9875 Animal Units to 15,000 Animal Units. In 
 addition, they intend to install an additional parlor, two free stalls, and a dry pen within the 
 existing footprint of the dairy operations. 

 
Open for Public Comment 
Close for Public Comment 
Discussion and Decision 

 
H. ADJOURNMENT 



MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 BCC 18 
RESCINDED 10.04.2022 
Due to Duplicate Number 

 
A RESOLUTION UPDATING THE FINANCIAL AUTHORITY OF COUNTY OFFICIALS AND 

EMPLOYEES RELATING TO COUNTY BANK ACCOUNTS 

WHEREAS, the County Commissioners desire to update which County officials have authority 
to open or close accounts; endorse for cash, deposit, negotiation, collection; sign checks or orders for 
payment; or execute fund withdrawal requests from County bank accounts on behalf of the County. 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Morgan County Board of County Commissioners as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The following County Officials are hereby authorized to open or close accounts; 

endorse for cash, deposit, negotiation, collection; sign checks or orders for payment; or execute fund 
withdrawal request from the following County bank account. 

 
a. Bank of Colorado, Morgan County, Board of Commissioners Account Number 6700006937 
 Jon J. Becker, County Commissioner 
 Gordon H. Westhoff, County Commissioner 
 Mark A. Arndt, County Commissioner 
 Kevin L. Strauch, County Clerk and Recorder 
  Robert A. Sagel, County Treasurer 
 
Section 2.  No withdrawal request shall be effective unless execute by two of the above-named 

individuals. 
 
Section 3.  All previous authorizations relating to the same subject matter are hereby repealed. 
 
APPROVED this 16th day of August 2022. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
 

      _____________________________________________ 
      Jon J. Becker, Chairman    Date 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Gordon H. Westhoff, Commissioner  Date 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark A. Arndt, Commissioner   Date 
(Seal) 
 
__________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 



MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 BCC 20 

A RESOLUTION UPDATING THE FINANCIAL AUTHORITY OF COUNTY OFFICIALS AND 
EMPLOYEES RELATING TO COUNTY BANK ACCOUNTS 

WHEREAS, the County Commissioners desire to update which County officials have authority 
to open or close accounts; endorse for cash, deposit, negotiation, collection; sign checks or orders for 
payment; or execute fund withdrawal requests from County bank accounts on behalf of the County. 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Morgan County Board of County Commissioners as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The following County Officials are hereby authorized to open or close accounts; 

endorse for cash, deposit, negotiation, collection; sign checks or orders for payment; or execute fund 
withdrawal request from the following County bank account. 

 
a. Bank of Colorado, Morgan County, Board of Commissioners Account Number 6700006937 
 Jon J. Becker, County Commissioner 
 Gordon H. Westhoff, County Commissioner 
 Mark A. Arndt, County Commissioner 
 Kevin L. Strauch, County Clerk and Recorder 
  Robert A. Sagel, County Treasurer 
 
Section 2.  No withdrawal request shall be effective unless execute by two of the above-named 

individuals. 
 
Section 3.  All previous authorizations relating to the same subject matter are hereby repealed. 
 
APPROVED this 4th day of October 2022. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
 

      _____________________________________________ 
      Jon J. Becker, Chairman    Date 
 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Gordon H. Westhoff, Commissioner  Date 
 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark A. Arndt, Commissioner   Date 
(Seal) 
 
__________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 



1 
 

MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION  
2022 BCC 21 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE 

OF COUNTY PROPERTY TO BOHMCO, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Morgan County (“County”) is the owner of real property in Morgan County, 
Colorado (the “Property”); 

WHEREAS, Bohmco, LLC desires to purchase and County desires to sell the Property;  
 

WHEREAS, the Property is not being used for any governmental purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds and determines that it would be in the best 
interests of the County and its residents to sell the Property.   
  

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1. The Purchase and Sale Agreement between the County and Bohmco, LLC, a copy 
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, is hereby approved and adopted, and the 
Chair of the Board of County Commissioner is authorized to execute the Agreement.  The Chair is further 
authorized to execute any related documents required to accomplish the County’s sale of the Property, 
including all title- and closing-related documents. 
  
 APPROVED this ______ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Jon J. Becker, Chair 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Mark A. Arndt, Commissioner  
 

__________________________________________ 
      Gordon H. Westhoff, Commissioner 
 (SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kevin Strauch 
Clerk to the Board 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

1  

 

AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE 

This Agreement of Purchase and Sale (this “Agreement”) is made the 4th day of October, 
2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Bohmco, LLC with a physical address of 23015, 
WCR 62, Greeley, Colorado 80631 and a mailing address of 3620 W. 10th Street, Unit B, Suite 
511, Greeley, Colorado 80634 (“Buyer”) and Morgan County, through its Board of County 
Commissioners, with an address of 231 Ensign, Fort Morgan, Colorado 80701 (the “Seller”). 

1. Purchase and Sale.  Buyer hereby agrees to purchase, and Seller agrees to sell, that 
certain parcel of real property situated in the City of Brush, County of Morgan, State of Colorado, 
legally described on Exhibit A attached, (the “Property”), together with all water rights, mineral 
rights, reversions, remainders, rights, privileges, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, 
improvements licenses, tenements and hereditaments appertaining to or otherwise benefiting or 
used in connection with such real property and improvements and owned by Seller. 

(a) Consideration.  The purchase price for the Property (the “Purchase Price”) 
shall be Twenty-Five Thousand and One Dollars and No Cents ($25,001.00) and shall be paid 
as follows: 

(b) Within three (3) business days after the Effective Date, Buyer shall deposit 
the sum of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and No Cent ($2,500.00) (which amount, together 
with any interest earned thereon as described below, comprises the “Deposit”), in the form of a 
check, with Northern Colorado Title Company (“Escrow Holder” or “Title Company”), as earnest 
money and part payment of the Purchase Price, to secure Buyer’s performance hereunder.  Except 
as expressly set forth in Sections 3, 4, 6, 8 and 12 of this Agreement, the Deposit shall be 
nonrefundable to Buyer.  The Deposit shall be held by Escrow Holder in an interest-bearing 
account; and 

(c) The balance of the Purchase Price, as adjusted by prorations as provided for 
herein, shall be paid in certified funds or by immediately available wire transfer at Closing. 

2. Review of Property Conditions; Contingency Period.   

(a) Seller shall, within seven (7) calendar days following the Effective Date, to 
the extent not previously delivered to Buyer, deliver to Buyer copies of all plans, drawings, reports, 
investigations, tests, surveys, leases, and information pertaining to the Property’s physical, 
environmental, operating, title and financial condition which are in Seller’s possession (the 
“Diligence Information”).  Seller expressly disclaims any warranty for the accuracy or 
completeness of any Diligence Information prepared by third parties and delivered to or made 
available to Buyer in accordance with this provision; however, Seller has no knowledge that any 
such information is inaccurate or incomplete.  From and after the Effective Date until the earlier 
of the Closing or the earlier termination of this Agreement, Seller agrees to forward to Buyer at 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

2  

 

Buyer’s office at the addresses set forth for notices herein, for review by Buyer, copies of any 
notices of the type described in Section 6(h), below. 

(b) During the Contingency Period (as defined below), and unless this 
Agreement is terminated as provided herein, as reasonably necessary thereafter, Seller hereby 
grants Buyer and its agents and consultants access to the Property at reasonable times and in a 
reasonable manner, to inspect, examine and test each and every part thereof, at Buyer’s sole risk, 
cost and expense, and to evaluate the suitability of the Property for Buyer’s intended use.  Such 
right of review shall include, without limitation, examination of title and survey matters, 
availability of utilities and other services, financial feasibility, soil and subsoil conditions, purposes 
to which the Property is suited, drainage, access to public roads, hazardous or toxic waste or 
conditions or the effect on the Property and adjacent areas of any state or federal environmental 
protection laws or regulations.  All entry onto the Property by or on behalf of Buyer at any time 
prior to the Closing shall be upon prior telephonic notice to Seller, subject to such rules as Seller 
may reasonably impose to avoid interference with Seller’s ongoing use of the Property.  Buyer 
agrees to conduct all examinations and tests of the Property in a safe and workmanlike manner, 
repair any damage or disturbance it causes to the Property in the event this Agreement is terminated 
or fails to close in accordance with its terms.  Buyer shall have no obligation to Seller with respect 
to any claims arising from or related to pre-existing conditions of the Property or the willful or 
negligent acts or omissions of Seller.  The obligations of Buyer under this Section 3(b) shall 
survive the Closing or the termination of this Agreement.  

(c) On or before expiration of the Contingency Period, Buyer shall determine 
in its sole discretion whether the Property is acceptable to Buyer and whether Buyer has the ability 
to finance the purchase of the Property on terms and conditions acceptable to Buyer in its sole and 
absolute discretion.  If Buyer concludes that the Property is not acceptable to it, for any reason 
whatsoever, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing on or before the end of the Contingency Period 
that Buyer is electing to terminate this Agreement (the “Termination Notice”).  If Buyer does not 
deliver the Termination Notice to Seller on or before the end of the Contingency Period, Buyer 
shall be deemed to have waived its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 3(c), 
and this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  If Buyer timely delivers the Termination 
Notice, then the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer and both parties shall be relieved from all 
further obligations under this Agreement, except for the obligations of Buyer or Seller that 
expressly survive the termination of this Agreement, all of which shall continue in full force and 
effect.  Buyer shall return to Seller all documents and materials provided to Buyer by Seller, shall 
provide Seller with copies of any survey, environmental reports, and other reports or 
documentation commissioned by Buyer regarding the Property, and shall assign to Seller Buyer’s 
rights in all such work product, documents, and materials at no cost to Seller. 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

3  

 

(d) For purposes hereof, the “Contingency Period” shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall expire at 5:00 p.m. local Colorado time, on the twentieth (20th) calendar 
day following the Effective Date. 

3. Title. 

(a) Seller shall, within seven (7) business days following the Effective Date, to 
the extent not previously delivered, cause to be delivered to Buyer, at Buyer’s expense: (i) a current 
owners title insurance commitment on the Property issued by the Title Company, in the amount of 
the Purchase Price;  (ii) legible copies of all  matters of record referenced in Schedule B-II of the 
Commitment; (iii) a current certificate of taxes due for the Property issued by the County assessor’s 
office, if any,  (the documents identified in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) hereof being collectively 
referred to as the “Title Commitment”); and (iv) a copy of any existing survey of the Property in 
Seller’s possession (“Existing Survey”). 

(b) Buyer shall have the option, at its expense, during the Contingency Period, 
to obtain a survey for the Property in form acceptable to Buyer and sufficient to permit Title 
Company to delete standard survey exceptions (the “Survey”).  If obtained by Buyer, Buyer shall 
deliver a copy of the Survey to Seller and to Title Company, and the Survey shall be in a form 
reasonably satisfactory to Title Company as having been made in compliance with applicable law 
and land survey standards, certified to Buyer, Seller, Title Company and any other parties specified 
by Buyer.  Any additional expense related to the Survey shall be at the expense of Buyer.  In the 
event Buyer does not elect to obtain the Survey, Buyer shall have no right to object to any matter 
on the Title Commitment that would be removed upon delivery of a Survey meeting the 
requirements specified herein. 

(c) Buyer shall have until 5:00 p.m. on the twentieth (20th) day following the 
Effective Date (the “Title Objection Period”) to notify Seller in writing (“Title Objection Notice”) 
of any objection Buyer may have to any matter contained in the Title Commitment or shown on 
the Survey (“Objection”).  All matters shown in the Title Commitment and/or the Survey that are 
not objected to in a Title Objection Notice prior to expiration of the Title Objection Period shall 
be deemed “Permitted Exceptions”; provided, however, that Buyer shall not be required to object 
to, and Seller shall be obligated to remove at or before Closing, any monetary liens attributable to 
Seller’s activities shown on the Title Commitment or any update thereto.  Current real property 
taxes and assessments not yet due and payable, government liens for special improvements not 
installed as of the Effective Date, if any, and all other matters which may be caused by Buyer or 
agreed to by Buyer in writing shall also be Permitted Exceptions.  Seller shall have five (5) days 
from receipt of the Title Objection Notice (the “Title Response Time”) to notify Buyer in writing 
of its election either to cure the Objections so specified, or to take no action (a “Title Response 
Notice”).  If Seller does not deliver a Title Response Notice to Buyer prior to expiration of the 
Title Response Time, Seller shall be deemed to have elected to take no action with respect to the 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

4  

 

Objections.  If Seller elects (or is deemed to have elected) to take no action with respect to any 
Objection, then Buyer shall have, as its exclusive remedy, the right to terminate this Agreement or 
to waive such Objections and close with no reduction in the Purchase Price.  If, in such event, 
Buyer fails to notify Seller within five (5) days after the expiration of Title Response Time that 
Buyer elects to terminate this Agreement, then Buyer shall be deemed to have elected to close the 
transaction evidenced by this Agreement and to waive such Objections, with no reduction in the 
Purchase Price, and in such event the Objections shall be deemed Permitted Exceptions.  If Buyer 
timely elects to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4(c), 
then the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer and both parties shall be relieved from all further 
obligations under this Agreement, except for the obligations of Buyer or Seller that expressly 
survive the termination of this Agreement, all of which shall continue in full force and effect.  
Seller shall have no obligation to agree to cure any Objection, but if Seller elects to cure an 
Objection, Seller shall use its commercially reasonable efforts and diligently pursue any cure. 

(d) If any update of the Title Commitment or Survey prior to Closing contains 
any new exception, new title or survey matter or any additional requirements not previously shown 
in the Title Commitment or Survey, Buyer shall have five (5) days thereafter to give Seller written 
notice of Buyer’s objections thereto (an “Additional Objection”).  Any Additional Objection shall 
be treated in the same manner as an Objection under Section 4(c).  

4. Closing/Prorations. 

(a) The purchase and sale shall close (herein referred to as the “Closing”) at the 
office of the Title Company, on the Closing Date (as hereafter defined), or such other time as the 
parties may mutually agree.  The Closing may, at either party’s option, be accomplished through 
escrow with the Escrow Holder in accordance with the general provisions of the usual form of 
escrow agreement used in similar transactions by the Escrow Holder, amended as may be 
appropriate to conform to the terms of this Agreement, provided that any such escrow agreement 
shall be executed by Buyer, Seller, and the Escrow Holder as of the date and time scheduled for 
Closing.  For purposes hereof, the “Closing Date” shall be thirty days from the Effective Date or, 
by mutual agreement in writing, an earlier date.   

(b) All general real estate taxes and assessments (“Taxes”) for all calendar years 
prior to the date of Closing, if any, shall be paid by Seller on or before Closing.  All Taxes for the 
calendar year in which the Closing shall occur, which are not due and payable as of Closing, shall 
be prorated to the Closing Date based on the actual Taxes for the year of closing, if known, and if 
not known, based on the most recent assessed valuations and most recent mill levy available, which 
proration shall be deemed a final settlement between the parties. 

(c) All title charges for the base premium for the Owner’s policy of title 
insurance in the amount of the Purchase Price, including any endorsements thereto shall be paid 
by Buyer.  The recording fee for the deed of conveyance, documentary fee and transfer taxes, if 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

5  

 

any, and the premium for any title endorsements or coverage amounts above the coverage agreed 
to be provided by Seller shall be paid by Buyer.  All other closing costs imposed by the Title 
Company or Escrow Holder, including but not limited to the escrow and closing fee of the Escrow 
Holder, shall be paid by Buyer. 

(d) Possession of the Property, subject to Permitted Exceptions, shall be 
delivered to the Buyer on the date of Closing. 

(e) As part of the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer or Escrow Holder, as 
applicable, the following: 

(i) a special warranty deed in the statutory form;  

(ii) the unconditional commitment of the Title Company to issue the 
Title Policy as required under the Agreement; 

(iii) an affidavit, as required by the Title Company, necessary to delete 
the standard printed title exceptions; and 

(iv) evidence, as required by the Title Company, that those acting for the 
Seller have full authority to consummate this transaction in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement; and 

(v) such other documents, including affidavits, as may be reasonably 
required in order for the Title Company to issue the title policy contemplated by this 
Agreement and for the parties to close the transactions evidenced hereby. 

(f) As part of Closing, Buyer shall deliver to the Seller or Escrow Holder, as 
applicable, the following: 

(i) the Purchase Price in the amount and form as stated herein; 

(ii) evidence, as required by the Title Company, that those acting for the 
Buyer have full authority to consummate this transaction in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement; and 

(iii) such other documents, including affidavits, as the Title Company 
may reasonably require in order to issue the title policy contemplated by this Agreement 
and close the transactions evidenced hereby. 

5. Default. 

(a) If Seller shall fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder for any reason 
other than (i) a force majeure event, or (ii) Buyer’s default hereunder, and Seller’s failure to 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

6  

 

perform is not cured within fifteen days (15) days following written notice from Buyer describing 
in reasonable detail the default hereunder, Buyer shall have the rights, which shall be Buyer’s 
exclusive remedies:  to terminate this Agreement and receive a return of the Deposit as liquidated 
damages (and not as a penalty, Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledging that the amount of damages 
resulting from a breach of this Agreement by Seller would be difficult or impossible to accurately 
ascertain).  Any and all other remedies otherwise available to Buyer under applicable law are 
expressly waived. 

(b) If Buyer shall fail to perform any of its obligations hereunder for any reason 
except for (i) a force majeure event; or (ii) Seller’s default hereunder, and Buyer’s failure to 
perform is not cured within fifteen (15) days following written notice from Seller describing in 
reasonable detail the default hereunder, Seller shall have the rights, which shall be Seller’s 
exclusive remedies: (i) to specific performance of Buyer's obligations hereunder; or (ii) to 
terminate this Agreement and receive the Deposit as liquidated damages (and not as a penalty, 
Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledging that the amount of damages resulting from a breach of 
this Agreement by Buyer would be difficult or impossible to accurately ascertain).  Any and all 
other remedies otherwise available to Seller under applicable law are expressly waived. 

(c) Seller is not a “foreign person” as defined in §1445(f)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(d) There are no pending proceedings and Seller has not received any written 
notice of any threatened proceeding against Seller or to which Seller is a party or relating to the 
Property. 

(e) All service contracts affecting the Property may be canceled on thirty (30) 
days’ notice, and Seller has delivered or shall deliver to Seller copies of such contracts. 

(f) Seller has been duly organized and is validly existing and in good standing 
as a county and existing pursuant to the provisions of Title 30 of the Colorado Revised Statutes 
and applicable provision of the Colorado Constitution.  Seller has the full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement and to perform all of its obligations hereunder.  The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement requires no further action or approval in order to constitute this 
Agreement as binding and enforceable obligations of Seller.  The person signing this Agreement 
on behalf of Seller is authorized to do so. 

(g) There are no contracts or agreements in effect with any party for the 
management or leasing of the Property that shall be binding on Buyer, and any such agreements 
shall be terminated by the parties thereto without a fee, penalty or liability to Buyer. 

(h) Seller has not received any written notice of any violations (that  remain 
uncured) of law, statutes, rules, governmental ordinances, orders or requirements noted or issued 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

7  

 

by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority having jurisdiction over or affecting the 
Property, including, without limitation, violations of safety, accessibility, ADA, health, 
environmental, fire, zoning or subdivision laws, ordinances, codes and regulations.  

(i) Seller has not (i) made a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, 
(ii) instituted, or been the subject of, any proceeding to be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent or 
consented to the institution of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings against it, (iii) filed a petition, 
answer or consent seeking reorganization or relief under any applicable Federal or state bankruptcy 
law or consented to the filing of any such petition or to the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, 
assignee, trustee, sequestrator or other similar official of it or of any part of its property, or (iv) 
admitted in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due. 

6. General Matters. 

(a) This Agreement can be amended only in writing by both parties and 
supersedes any and all agreements between the parties hereto regarding the Property which are 
prior in time to this Agreement. 

(b) If any portion of the Property is taken by eminent domain or condemnation 
or any transfer in lieu of eminent domain or condemnation, Buyer may (i) terminate this Agreement 
in writing on or before the Closing Date, or (ii) complete the purchase of the Property without 
reduction in the Purchase Price but in the event of any taking by eminent domain or condemnation 
or any transfer in lieu of eminent domain or condemnation, Buyer shall be entitled at Closing and 
Seller shall at Closing assign to Buyer all condemnation awards and settlements with respect 
thereto; or in the event of the destruction or material damage to the improvements on the Property, 
Buyer shall be entitled at Closing and Seller shall at Closing assign to Buyer all insurance proceeds 
with respect thereto.  In the event Buyer terminates this Agreement under this Section 8(b), the 
Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, all documents and any other funds in the possession of the 
Escrow Holder shall be returned immediately to the party having deposited the same and both 
parties shall be relieved of their respective obligations under this Agreement except for those 
which expressly survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

(c) Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

(d) Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, all tenders and notices required 
hereunder shall be made and given in writing by confirmed facsimile transmission to the parties 
hereto and their counsel at the facsimile numbers herein set forth and shall be effective as of the 
date of transmission; or by personal delivery (which shall be effective as of the date of delivery); 
or by mailing by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested (which shall be effective as of the 3rd 
business day after deposit); or by private contract carrier (which shall be effective as of the date of 
delivery).  Facsimile numbers and addresses for notice are: 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

8  

 

If to Buyer: 
 
Bohmco, LLC 
23015 WCR 62 
Greeley, CO  80631 
 
Mailing Address 
3620 W. 10th Street, Unit B, Suite 511 
Greeley, Colorado 80634 
 
If to Seller: 
 
Board of County Commissioners 
Morgan County 
218 Kiowa Avenue 
Fort Morgan, Colorado 80701 
Telephone:  (970) 542-3500 
Facsimile:  (970) 542-3556 
 
With a Copy to: 
 
Jeff Parker 
Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, PC 
511 16th Street, Suite 610 
Denver, Colorado 80202 
Telephone:  (303) 825-6444 
Facsimile:  (303) 825-1269 

 
(e) As specifically limited herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors, and permitted assigns of the parties hereto. 

(f) The performance and interpretation of this Agreement shall be controlled 
by the laws of the state in which the Property is located. 

(g) Between the Effective Date of this Agreement and the Closing, Seller shall 
continue to operate the Property in the normal and ordinary course in accordance with its usual 
custom.  Seller shall not, after the Effective Date, sell, convey, option, mortgage, encumber, lease, 
contract to do any of the foregoing, or otherwise convey, abandon, relinquish, cloud, or encumber 
title to the Property or any part thereof or interest therein in any manner which would in Seller’s 
reasonable judgment, interfere with Seller’s ability to close in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

9  

 

(h) Buyer acknowledges Seller’s disclosure that the property may be located in 
a special taxing district.  SPECIAL TAXING DISTRICTS MAY BE SUBJECT TO GENERAL 
OBLIGATION INDEBTEDNESS THAT IS PAID BY REVENUES PRODUCED FROM 
ANNUAL TAX LEVIES ON THE TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN SUCH DISTRICTS.  
PROPERTY OWNERS IN SUCH DISTRICTS MAY BE PLACED AT RISK FOR INCREASED 
MILL LEVIES AND EXCESSIVE TAX BURDENS TO SUPPORT THE SERVICING OF 
SUCH DEBT WHERE CIRCUMSTANCES ARISE RESULTING IN THE INABILITY OF 
SUCH A DISTRICT TO DISCHARGE SUCH INDEBTEDNESS WITHOUT SUCH AN 
INCREASE IN MILL LEVIES.  BUYER SHOULD INVESTIGATE THE DEBT FINANCING 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE AUTHORIZED GENERAL OBLIGATION INDEBTEDNESS OF 
SUCH DISTRICTS, EXISTING MILL LEVIES OF SUCH DISTRICT SERVICING SUCH 
INDEBTEDNESS, AND THE POTENTIAL FOR AN INCREASE IN SUCH MILL LEVIES. 

(i) The delivery of electronic or facsimile copies of any parties’ signature 
hereon, or on any other agreement or instrument to be delivered in connection herewith shall be 
valid and binding for all purposes.  Upon request, either party will deliver to the other the original 
of the agreement or instrument delivered by electronic mail or facsimile, however failure to furnish 
an executed original shall not affect the effectiveness of any execution evidenced by a facsimile 
signature.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

7. Dates.  If any date set forth in this Agreement for the delivery of any document or 
the happening of any event should, under the terms hereof, fall on a weekend or holiday, then such 
date shall be automatically extended to the next succeeding weekday that is not a holiday (a 
“business day”). 

8. Brokers’ Fees. It is agreed and warranted by each party that no agent, person, or 
entity whatsoever is due any real estate commission for services performed in relation to this 
Agreement and Property described therein. 

  



2022 BCC 21 
Exhibit A 

10  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement for Sale and 
Purchase the date and year first above written. 

BUYER:  SELLER: 
   
  Morgan County 
   

By: 
   

By: 
 

Name:  
 

Name: Jon Becker 

Title:  

 

Title: 
Chair, Board of County 
Commissioners for Morgan County 

 
 
 



 Exh A  
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
Parcel No. 3 as described on the survey plat recorded in the records of the Morgan County Clerk 
and Recorder at reception number 1600813, located in Morgan County, Colorado.   



1 
2022 BCC 22 

MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 BCC 22 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PERMIT FOR AN ACTIVITY OF STATE INTEREST 
(“1041 PERMIT) TO PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO DBA AS XCEL 

ENERGY FOR ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION LINES AND SUBSTATION IN MORGAN 
COUNTY  

WHEREAS, Public Service Company of Colorado, dba as Xcel Energy (“Xcel”), 
submitted an application for a permit for an activity of state interest (“1041 Permit”); 

WHEREAS, Xcel’s application sought approval of approximately 48 miles of 345-kV 
transmission lines and a new substation, known as the Canal Crossing Substation, which are part 
of Xcel’s Colorado’s Power Pathway Project;  

WHEREAS, in its application, Xcel further requested a partial waiver from Section 3-
305(2)(b)(iii) of Morgan County’s 1041 Regulations (“1041 Regulations”) to not be required to 
submit title information listed in that subsection;  

WHEREAS, prior to the submission of the application and in conformity with Section 3-
304(1) of the 1041 Regulations, on April 26, 2022, the Morgan County Board of County 
Commissioners (“Board of County Commissioners”) determined that no preliminary application 
would be required; 

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2022, the County Planning Director granted the partial waiver 
requested by Xcel and the application was considered complete;   

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the Board of County Commissioners on the 
application was scheduled for September 14, 2022;  

WHEREAS, notice of the hearing was provided in accordance with Section 2-301 of the 
1041 Regulations;  

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2022, the Board of County Commissioners held a duly 
noticed public hearing on the application and received testimony and evidence from the applicant 
and public on the application; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners continued the public hearing to 
September 27, 2022 directing staff to address several outstanding issues and concerns;  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners conducted the continued public hearing 
on September 27, 2022 and received additional testimony and evidence from staff, the public and 
the applicant; and 

WHEREAS, after considering all relevant testimony and evidence, the Board of County 
Commissioners desires to approve the application, subject to certain conditions set forth herein. 



2 
2022 BCC 22 

 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO: 
 

1. APPROVAL. 
 
The application is hereby granted, subject to the conditions set forth herein. This Resolution 
shall constitute the 1041 permit (hereinafter referred to as this “Resolution” or the 
“Permit”). 
 

2. FINDING OF FACT. 
 
Subject to the applicant meeting and complying with all conditions set forth herein, the 
following findings are made in accordance with the criteria found in Section 3-306 of the 
1041 Regulations: 
 
a. The health, welfare and safety of the citizens of this County will be protected and 

served. 
 
There are no anticipated substantial adverse impacts to the health, welfare and 
safety of the County’s citizens.  Subject to the conditions set forth in this Permit, 
the impacts to agricultural land will be minimal as the right-of-way is 150 feet wide 
and certain agricultural activities may continue in the right of way.  Although 
transmission lines can generate electromagnetic fields, Xcel’s lines will comply 
with all applicable laws, including the National Electric Code.  Moreover, most of 
the lines will be in sparsely populated areas. 
 

b. The natural and socio-economic environment of this County will be protected and 
enhanced. 
 
Impacts to the natural environment are anticipated to be temporary and limited in 
nature.  Most impacts will occur during the construction phase, and Xcel will be 
required to use best management practices to avoid harm to areas outside of the 
lines’ right-of-way.  Some relatively minor temporary economic benefits are 
expected as construction crews work on the Project.  However, because the crews 
will be relatively small and the construction will be temporary, the direct economic 
benefits are not anticipated to be substantial.  The installation of the transmission 
lines will provide additional opportunity for power generation projects to connect 
to Xcel’s system.  Landowners may benefit by contracting for the use of their land 
for solar and wind generation projects that would otherwise not occur.  These 
generation projects will come with benefits and drawbacks.  New jobs will be 
available and construction crews will use local businesses.  However, wind and 
solar projects have additional impacts on the area, including use of agricultural 
land, and noise, visual, and wildlife impacts. 

 
c. All reasonable alternatives to the proposed action, including use of existing rights-



3 
2022 BCC 22 

of-way and joint use of rights-of-way, wherever uses are compatible, have been 
adequately assessed and the proposed action represents the best interests of the 
people of this County and represents the best utilization of resources in the impact 
area. 

 
Xcel has provided a Routing and Siting Study as Attachment A to its application.  
Xcel undertook substantial efforts to engage with the public. See Section 3.4.1 for 
Segment 1 and Section 3.4.3 for Canal Crossing Substation and Segment 2 of the 
Routing and Siting Study for more information.  The Routing and Siting addresses 
how Xcel considered a variety of factors in selecting the route of the transmission 
lines and how the route was modified to address these factors.  A substantial portion 
of the route for the transmission line is in the public right-of-way.  The transmission 
line routing and substation siting study information is set forth in Attachment A to 
Xcel’s application.  Section 11 of Xcel’s narrative addresses alternatives considered 
by Xcel.   
 

d. A satisfactory program to mitigate and minimize adverse impacts has been 
presented. 

 
There are no anticipated non-mitigated adverse impacts other than the potential 
impact on County roadways, the potential for construction-related pollution of 
irrigation ditches, canals, and waterways, and unremediated land subsequent to 
construction activity. These concerns are adequately mitigated via the condition for 
Xcel to enter into a road use agreement with the County which will requiring Xcel 
to return any damaged County roadways to their condition prior to Xcel-caused 
damage and operate on designated haul routes.  Xcel will be required to fully 
remediate land, including irrigation ditches, damaged by its construction activities.  
See Section 12 of Xcel’s narrative for additional details regarding how it will 
mitigate and minimize adverse impacts. 
 

e. The nature and location or expansion of the facility complies with all applicable 
provisions of the master plan of this County, and other applicable regional, 
metropolitan, state, and national plans. 

 
The project is compatible with the County’s master plan.  It protects the agricultural 
character of the County, improves the state’s renewable energy opportunities and 
brings renewable energy opportunities to the County.   

 
f. The nature and location or expansion of the facility complements the existing and 

reasonably foreseeable needs of the service area and of the area immediately 
affected by the facility. 
 
The project is not anticipated to cause significant changes to the use of land in its 
area.  Following construction, agricultural activities along the transmission line 
route can continue outside of the small area occupied by the transmission poles and 
the Canal Crossing Substation footprint. 



4 
2022 BCC 22 

 
g. The nature and location or expansion of the facility does not unduly or 

unreasonably impact existing community services. 
 
No additional governmental services are required by the project.   

 
h. The nature and location or expansion of the facility will not create an expansion of 

the demand for government services beyond the reasonable capacity of the 
community or region to provide such services, as determined by the Board. 

 
No additional governmental services are required by the project during or after 
construction.  There may be impacts on County roadways, which can be mitigated 
by requiring Xcel to prepare a traffic plan and remediate any damage caused to 
County roadways. 

 
i. The facility site or expansion area is not in an area with general meteorological 

and climatological conditions which would unreasonably interfere with or obstruct 
normal operations and maintenance. 

 
The equipment will be designed to withstand unusual meteorogical events.  The 
transmission lines and substation will be able to function normally in a wide range 
of County weather conditions.   

 
j. The nature and location of the facility or expansion will not adversely affect the 

water rights of any upstream, downstream, or agricultural users, adjacent 
communities or other water users. 

 
No water rights will be impacted by the Project.   

 
k. Adequate water supplies are available for facility needs. 

 
Water for construction activities will be trucked into the location and obtained from 
local permitted water sources. Large quantities of water are not necessary for the 
project. 

 
l. The nature and location of the facility or expansion will not unduly interfere with 

any existing easements for or rights-of-way, for other utilities, canals, mineral 
claims, or roads. 

 
As part of the land rights process, Xcel will identify existing easements and rights-
of-way for other utilities, canals, mineral claims, or roads and will not cause any 
undue interference with existing easements or rights-of-way during construction 
and operation of Pathway. 

 
m. Adequate electric, gas, telephone, water, sewage, and other utilities exist or shall 

be developed to service the site. 



5 
2022 BCC 22 

 
Any utilities required for the project will be adequate.   

 
n. The nature and location for expansion of the facility will not interfere with any 

significant wildlife habitat or adversely affect any endangered wildlife species, 
unique natural resource or historic landmark within the impact area. 

 
There will be impacts during construction of the Project, including increased 
construction equipment impact, noise, and dust.  There could be sediment run off 
from the construction activities into irrigation ditches and other waterways.  
However, Xcel represents that it will implement best management practices to 
control sediment and runoff into canals and waterways during construction.  Xcel 
will be regulated by CDPHE and is required to follow state standards to control 
fugitive construction dust.  Once operational, most environmental impacts will be 
limited.   
 
The transmission line route will span wetlands.  Xcel believes it will be able to span 
most wetlands and therefore, will not adversely impact them.  However, if a 
wetland cannot be spanned, Xcel will need to obtain appropriate permits from the 
Army Corps of Engineers. 
 
Xcel has conducted studies on the impact of the project on species in the area and 
has been engaged with Colorado Parks and Wildlife regarding the routing and 
related impacts of the transmission lines in the area.  There will be impacts to habitat 
due to clearing activities for construction.  However, these impacts should be 
limited to the 150-foot right-of-way.   

 
o. The nature and location or expansion of the facility, including expected growth and 

development related to the operation and provision of service, will not significantly 
deteriorate water or air quality in the impact area. 
 
Drainage facilities will be constructed to address the increased impervious area 
caused by the substation.  Best management practices will be followed during 
construction to minimize run-off into waterways and irrigation ditches.  There will 
be increased air pollution from fugitive dust, fumes, and construction equipment 
exhaust.  Because the majority of the construction activity will occur in sparsely-
populated areas, the impacts are anticipated to be minimal.  The County retains its 
nuisance-enforcement authority and will regulate Xcel’s construction activity if it 
results in adverse impacts to the neighboring properties.   

 
p. The geological and topographic features of the site are adequate for all 

construction, clearing, grading, drainage, vegetation, and other needs of the 
facility construction or expansion. 
 
The substation location is flat and minimal grading activity is expected.  The 
majority of the transmission line route is also relatively flat.  Therefore, no major 



6 
2022 BCC 22 

topographic issues are expected.  There will be clearing of vegetation within the 
150-foot right-of-way to facilitate construction activities.  Any damages will be 
reclaimed upon completion of construction. 

 
q. The existing water quality of affected state waters will not be degraded below state 

and federal standards or established baseline levels. 
 
There is some risk of runoff from the construction area into local waterways and 
irrigation ditches.  However, Xcel will employ best management practices to avoid 
any significant issues.  Upon completion of construction, the transmission line 
infrastructure will span most wetlands and waterways.  If wetlands or waterways 
of the United States cannot be avoided, Xcel will be required to obtain federal 
permits.  

 
r. The proposed project will not have a significantly adverse net effect on the 

capacities or functioning of streams, lakes and reservoirs in the impact area, nor 
on the permeability, volume, recharge capability, and depth of aquifers in the 
impact area. 
 
See Section (q), above. There will be no impact on aquifers. 

 
s. The benefits of the proposed developments outweigh the losses of any natural 

resources or reduction of productivity of agricultural lands as a result of the 
proposed development. 
 
Minimal loss of agricultural land is anticipated.  There could be some impact on 
natural resources, primarily resulting from impact of construction activity on 
wildlife habitat.  However, Xcel is working with CPW to limit these impacts.  The 
proposed development will provide some short terms economic benefit to local 
businesses during construction.  The longer term benefits include the opportunity 
for renewable power generation operations in the County to connect to the 
transmission facilities and the related environmental impacts of clean energy 
sources (wind and solar).   

 
t. The applicant has obtained or will obtain all property rights, permits, and 

approvals necessary for the proposed project, including surface, mineral, and 
water rights and easements. for drainage, disposal, utilities, access, etc.  If the 
applicant has not obtained all necessary property rights, permits and approvals, 
the Board may; at its discretion, grant the permit conditioned upon completion of 
the acquisition of such· rights prior to issuance of a zoning or building permit by 
the County. 

 
Xcel will be required to obtain all necessary property rights for the transmission 
lines prior to commencement of construction.  Xcel is unlikely to have the rights 
for all property in the County at commencement of construction, but will not 
commence construction on any section until the underlying rights are acquired. 



7 
2022 BCC 22 

 
u. The proposed project will not present an unreasonable risk of exposure to or 

release of toxic or hazardous substances within the impact area. The determination 
of effects of the project shall include the following considerations: 

 
(i) The means by which outdoor storage facilities for fuel, raw materials, 

equipment and related items are adequately enclosed by a fence or 
wall; 

(ii) The likelihood of hazardous materials or wastes being moved off the 
site by natural causes or forces;  

(iii) Containment of inflammable or explosive liquids, solids or gases. 
 

No hazardous material is involved in the project other than fuel, lubricants, and 
coolants for machinery, which Xcel will store at its temporary construction areas.  
The County will be issuing permits for these temporary areas and will require that 
such material be stored appropriately in a manner that minimizes the risk of any 
spills. 
 

v. The scope and nature of the proposed project will not create duplicate services 
within the County. 
 
The transmission lines and substation fill a need for more transmission-related 
capacity for renewable energy generation facilities.  They will not duplicate 
existing services in the County. 
 

w. If the purpose and need for the proposed project are to meet the needs of an 
increasing population within the County, area and community development and 
population trends demonstrate clearly a need for such development. 
 
The project is not aimed at meeting the needs of the County due to its increasing 
population.  

 
3. CONDITIONS. 

 
The approval of the use by special review is conditioned upon the following: 
 
a. Prior to beginning construction on each parcel, all necessary land use, 

environmental, and construction permits, approvals and authorizations for that 
work will be obtained as required and may include, but are not limited to, land use 
permits, right-of-way (ROW) permits, road use agreements, access permits, 
oversize/overweight permits, grading permits, and stormwater permits. 

 
b. Any equipment additions at the Pawnee substation which are included in the Power 

Pathway project are not approved as part of this 1041 permit.  Xcel is required to 
obtain any applicable land use approval for any equipment additions at the Pawnee 
substation.  



8 
2022 BCC 22 

 
c. No poles shall exceed a height of 190 feet.  Xcel shall notify the County Planning 

Administrator of the location for poles that exceed 140 feet in height with an 
explanation of the reason for the excess height.   

 
d. The Canal Crossing Substation shall be enclosed by a security fence at least 10 feet 

tall and be secured at all times.  
 
e. Prior the commencement of construction in Morgan County, Xcel will enter into a 

road use agreement for the use of any public road during construction which shall 
include the following: 

 
i. A map showing which County roads will be used during construction. 
 
ii. A pre-construction baseline inventory of County roads to be used during 

construction to document their pre-construction condition, obtained by and 
paid for by the applicant.  

 
iii. A mitigation plan to address traffic congestion, control, and potential 

impacts to County roads to be used during construction.  The mitigation 
plan shall also include any dust mitigation activities.  

 
iv. A requirement that the applicant return any County roads to their pre-

construction baseline condition. 
 
v. A requirement to post financial security in an amount not less than one 

hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the estimated cost to complete all road 
restoration, in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or cash escrow.  
Cost estimates shall be provided by a licensed Colorado engineer.   Upon 
preliminary acceptance of the restored public road, the County shall release 
all but fifteen percent (15%) of total actual costs of restoration of the public 
roads, so long as Xcel is not in default of any provision of the road use 
agreement.  The County shall inspect the restored roads and Xcel shall pay 
to the County the cost incurred by the County in conducting such 
inspections.  These costs shall be due and payable upon demand of the 
County. Xcel shall be responsible for correcting or properly completing the 
restoration. 

 
vi. The residual fifteen percent (15%) retained by the County shall act as 

security for Xcel’s guarantee that the restoration remains free of defect 
during a two-year warranty period. Xcel may at any time during the 
preliminary acceptance or warranty period offer to provide a substitute or 
supplemental form of financial security to that security as originally posted 
with and/or retained by the County. The County may accept substitute or 
supplemental forms of security in its sole discretion. 

 



9 
2022 BCC 22 

f. Prior the commencement of construction on any parcel, Xcel must obtain all 
necessary permissions from landowners to use private roads or develop access 
roads on any private property.   No private access roads, new or currently in use, 
shall become public rights of way unless approved and accepted by the Board of 
County Commissioners.  Any new access from County roads will require a 
driveway permit issued by the Morgan County Road and Bridge Department.  

 
g. The County will require temporary use permits for all temporary construction areas, 

any staging or laydown areas, or other temporary areas for construction activities 
(“Temporary Areas”).  Xcel is required to obtain a temporary use permits for all 
Temporary Areas prior to placing any equipment, materials or any other items 
associated with the Pathway Project in the temporary construction area.  To obtain 
a temporary use permit, at a minimum, Xcel must provide a map showing the 
Temporary Area by size (acreage and perimeter), a list of materials and equipment 
to be stored on the Temporary Areas, activities within the area (e.g., grading, 
storage, etc.), the length of time the temporary construction or staging or laydown 
areas will be in use and in the case of concrete batch plants, a copy of the APEN 
issued by the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment.  Temporary 
use permits issued for Temporary Areas may not be issued for a period longer than 
one year.  There is no limit on the number renewals for the temporary use permits; 
however, Xcel must notify the County at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of a 
permit of its intent to renew.  It shall be a condition of every temporary use permit 
issued under this provision that all equipment and materials must be removed from 
the Temporary Areas and the area returned to a condition similar to its condition 
prior to construction, in accordance with paragraph 10 below.  No permanent 
structures may remain in the Temporary Areas unless approved by the County 
pursuant to the applicable Morgan County Zoning Regulations.  

 
h. The temporary use permit previously granted to Xcel at the northeast corner of 

County Road F and County Road 18 and due to expire shall become part of this 
1041 permit and subject to the provision in paragraph 7 above.  

 
i. Prior to use of any helicopters in connection with the initial construction of the 

Power Pathway project, Xcel shall provide at least thirty (30) days’ written notice 
to the County Planning Administrator of the location of the helicopter fly yard and 
dates and hours of helicopter use.  Xcel shall comply with all FAA requirements, 
including but not limited to, notice of evacuation to residences.  

 
j. Within one year from completion of construction of the project, all Temporary 

Areas and transmission lines rights of way, not needed for Xcel’s on-going 
operations in Morgan County or not used for crop production, shall be reclaimed 
and/or reseeded as soon as practicable, unless the County Planning Administrator 
grants an extension for demonstrated good cause.  

 
k. Construction occurring with ¼ quarter mile of any residence shall not commence 

earlier than 7 a.m. 



10 
2022 BCC 22 

 
l. Xcel shall prevent the existence of any nuisances by way of its construction 

activities.  All trash, litter, construction waste and any potentially hazardous 
materials shall be disposed of properly off-site.  If the County determines that a 
nuisance exists and the nuisance is not abated or an abatement plan is not submitted 
to the satisfaction of the County after notice to Xcel and an opportunity for 
abatement, the County may, upon thirty (30) days' notice under this Agreement, 
draw upon the Performance Guarantee to pay the cost and expenses of abating the 
nuisance.  The decision to draw on the Performance Guarantee shall be within the 
sole discretion of the County. 

 
m. Xcel shall comply with all applicable law and regulations related to safety and 

emergency management during construction and on-going operations.  
 
n. A drainage plan for the substation must be submitted for County review prior to the 

commencement of construction of the substation.  
 
o. Xcel shall be responsible for the payment of all costs and fees incurred by the 

County associated with this Permit.  The County shall invoice Xcel for costs and 
fees and payment will be due by Xcel within thirty (30) days of the date of the 
invoice.  Failure to pay may result in enforcement actions by the County. 

 
p. The centerline of the transmission poles shall be offset from existing water wells 

by the legally permissible re-drilling radius plus thirty-five (35) feet (“Restricted 
Area”), unless Xcel obtains the necessary real property rights that permit Xcel to 
limit the water well owner’s ability to operate, maintain or replace an existing water 
well within such Restricted Area.   Evidence of such permission shall be provided 
to the County Planning Department.  

 
q. Xcel shall use reasonable efforts to minimize the impacts to the use of farming 

equipment and agricultural operations when selecting pole placements. 
 

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
a. The Board of County Commissioners retains continuing jurisdiction over this 

Permit to ensure compliance with this Permit and the 1041 Regulations. County 
Representatives are authorized to inspect the property upon which the Project will 
be located at any reasonable time upon notice to the owner and Xcel.   

 
b. This approval is conditioned on compliance with all information and 

representations contained in the application and presented by the Xcel, which are 
incorporated into this Permit. 

 
c. Xcel shall comply and ensure compliance by its contractors and agents with all 

requirements, conditions and design standards set forth herein. Noncompliance 



11 
2022 BCC 22 

shall be grounds for revocation of this permit by the Morgan County Board of 
Commissioners pursuant to the procedures in the 1041 Regulations. 

 
  

APPROVED this __________ day of ____________, 2022. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO 

_____________________________________ 
Jon J. Becker, Chairman 

 
_____________________________________ 
Gordon H. Westoff, Commissioner 

 
_____________________________________ 
Mark A. Arndt, Commissioner 

ATTEST: 
(SEAL) 
 
_____________________________ 
Kevin Strauch, Clerk to the Board 



*Any meeting or event scheduled to be held at the Commissioners’ Offices (218 West Kiowa Avenue, Fort   
Morgan, CO) will be relocated to a site with handicapped access upon request. For special assistance for 
the Morgan County Board of Commissioners meeting, please notify us 48 hours before the scheduled 
agenda item. Please call (970)542-3500, extension 1410, to request accommodation. 

COMMISSIONERS CALENDAR 
September 30, 2022 through October 11, 2022 

 
Unless otherwise noted, all meetings with department heads and other non-BOCC elected officials listed 
above may include an update on the status of the department, a general discussion of projects, any 
matters or concerns that the County needs to address, and activities and operations of the department.  
 

Department meetings may be by conference call or virtual meeting upon request. 
 

CALENDAR SUBJECT TO CHANGE DUE TO AGREEABLE CANCELLATIONS AND/OR WALK IN BUSINESS 
 

Posted 09/30/2022 @ 4:00 P.M. by Karla Powell, Administrative Services Manager 
** All meetings are held in the Commissioner’s Office located at 218 West Kiowa Avenue, Fort Morgan unless otherwise noted 

September 30, 2022  Daily County Business 
 

October 3, 2022 12:00 p.m. 
 

Office Meeting  

October 4, 2022 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
 

Board of County Commissioners Meeting (Assembly Room) 
(Please check https://morgancounty.colorado.gov/ for meeting 
options.) 
 

October 5,2022  Daily County Business 
 

October 6, 2022  Daily County Business 

October 7, 2022 
 

8:00 a.m. 
 

CCI Legislative Committee & General Membership Meeging 

October 10, 2022  Morgan County Offices Closed in Observation of Indigenous People 
Day 
 

October 11,2022 9:00 a.m. 
10:00 a.m. 
10:00 a.m. 
11:00 a.m. 

Ambulance Department Meeting 
County Attorney Office Hours 
Human Resources Department Meeting 
Finance Department Meeting 
 

https://morgancounty.colorado.gov/

















































































































































































































































































































































































































	BCC Agenda 10.04.2022
	2022 BCC 18 RESCINDED 10.04.2022  Bank of Colorado
	2022 BCC 20 Bank of Colorado
	2022 BCC 21 A Resolution Purchase_Sale_Bohm - R092722(1)
	2022 BCC 21 Bohmco, LLC Purchase Agreement - A092522 -
	2022 BCC 22 Xcel 1041 Permit - R093022
	Calendar 09.30.2022 to 10.11.2022
	Vondy BCC Packet 10.4.22
	Kraft BCC Packet 10.4.22

